
 

 

 

   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
LICENSING ENFORCEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
DATE: FRIDAY, 2 JULY 2021  
TIME: 10:00 am 
PLACE: Meeting Room G.01, Ground Floor, City Hall, 115 Charles 

Street, Leicester, LE1 1FZ 
 
Members of the Sub-Committee 
 
Councillors Cank, Pickering and Shelton 
 
 
Members of the Sub-Committee are summoned to attend the above 
meeting to consider the items of business listed overleaf. 
 

 
 
 
for Monitoring Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Officer contact: Angie Smith 
Democratic Support, Leicester City Council 

City Hall, 115 Charles Street, Leicester, LE1 1FZ 
Tel: 0116 454 6354 

email: angie.smith@leicester.gov.uk 
 

 

mailto:angie.smith@leicester.gov.uk


 

 

Information for members of the public. 
Attending meetings and access to information 
You have the right to attend formal meetings such as full Council, committee meetings, 
and Scrutiny Commissions and see copies of agendas and minutes.  
However, on occasion, meetings may, for reasons set out in law, need to consider 
some items in private. 
 
Due to COVID restrictions, public access in person is limited to ensure social 
distancing. If you wish to attend in person, you are required to contact the Democratic 
Support Officer in advance of the meeting regarding arrangements for public 
attendance. A guide to attending public meetings can be found here: (Insert link to new 
content on website when available) 
 
Dates of meetings and copies of public agendas and minutes are available on the 
Council’s website at www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk, or by contacting us using the details 
below. 
 
To hold this meeting in as Covid-safe a way as possible, all attendees are asked to 
follow current Government guidance and:  

 maintain distancing while entering and leaving the room/building; 

 remain seated and maintain distancing between seats during the meeting;  

 wear face coverings throughout the meeting unless speaking or exempt;  

 make use of the hand sanitiser available; 

 when moving about the building to follow signs about traffic flows, lift capacities 

etc;  

 comply with Test and Trace requirements by scanning the QR code at the 

entrance to the building and/or giving their name and contact details at reception 

prior to the meeting; 

 if you are displaying Coronavirus symptoms: a high temperature; a new, 

continuous cough; or a loss or change to your sense of smell or taste, you 

should NOT attend the meeting, please stay at home, and get a PCR test. 

 
Making meetings accessible to all 
 
Wheelchair access – Public meeting rooms at the City Hall are accessible to wheelchair users. 
Wheelchair access to City Hall is from the middle entrance door on Charles Street - press the 
plate on the right hand side of the door to open the door automatically. 
 
Braille/audio tape/translation - If you require this please contact the Democratic Support Officer 
(production times will depend upon equipment/facility availability). 
 
Induction loops - There are induction loop facilities in City Hall meeting rooms. Please speak to 
the Democratic Support Officer using the details below. 
 
Filming and Recording the Meeting - The Council is committed to transparency and supports 
efforts to record and share reports of proceedings of public meetings through a variety of 
means, including social media. In accordance with government regulations and the Council’s 
policy, persons and press attending any meeting of the Council open to the public (except 
Licensing Sub Committees and where the public have been formally excluded) are allowed to 
record and/or report all or part of that meeting.  Details of the Council’s policy are available at 
www.leicester.gov.uk or from Democratic Support. 

http://www.leicester.gov.uk/


 

 

 
If you intend to film or make an audio recording of a meeting you are asked to notify the 
relevant Democratic Support Officer in advance of the meeting to ensure that participants can 
be notified in advance and consideration given to practicalities such as allocating appropriate 
space in the public gallery etc.. 
 
The aim of the Regulations and of the Council’s policy is to encourage public interest and 
engagement so in recording or reporting on proceedings members of the public are asked: 
 to respect the right of others to view and hear debates without interruption; 
 to ensure that the sound on any device is fully muted and intrusive lighting avoided; 
 where filming, to only focus on those people actively participating in the meeting; 
 where filming, to (via the Chair of the meeting) ensure that those present are aware that 

they may be filmed and respect any requests to not be filmed. 
 
 

Further information  
 
If you have any queries about any of the above or the business to be discussed, please contact 
Angie Smith, Democratic Support on (0116) 454 6354 or email 

angie.smith@leicester.gov.uk 
 
For Press Enquiries - please phone the Communications Unit on 0116 454 4151 

mailto:angie.smith@leicester.gov.uk


 

 

 

LEICESTER CITY COUNCIL LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
PROCEDURAL GUIDE 
 
INTRODUCTORY PHASE 
 
The meeting will be held in public unless stated otherwise in the report. 
 
Present at the hearing will be Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee (minimum 3 
Members), Officers from the Licensing Authority, a Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee, an 
Officer from Democratic Services. 
 
1. Participants at the meeting will introduce themselves as follows: 
 

a. Members and Officers 
b. Statutory Consultees (if any) 
c. The Applicant and any representatives 
d. Persons who have made representations 

 
2. The Chair will check that the Applicant has received a copy of the Officer report. 
 
INFORMATION GATHERING 
 
3. The Licensing Officer presents the report (previously circulated) 
 

Questions (for clarification purposes only): 
Members 
Statutory Consultees (if any) 
Persons who have made representations 
Applicant and Representative (s) 

 
4. Depending on the nature of the report, Statutory Consultees present their comments. 
 

Questions (for clarification purposes only): 
Members 
Officers 
Persons who have made representations 
Applicant and Representative(s) 

 
5. Persons who have made representations 
 

Questions (for clarification purposes only): 
Members 
Officers 
Statutory Consultees (is any) 
Applicant and Representative(s) 

 
6. Applicant’s Case 
 

Questions (for clarification purposes only): 
Members 
Officers 
Statutory Consultees 
Persons who have made representations 

 



 

 

7. Summing up in the following order 
 

Officers 
Statutory Consultees 
Persons who have made representations 
Applicant and Representative(s) 

 
8. The Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee to advise the Sub-Committee in the presence 

of the Applicant, Representatives, Officers, Statutory Consultees, and persons who 
have made representations on relevant issues the Members need to be aware of when 
they come to make their decision.  

 
DECISION MAKING 
 
9. Apart from the Sub-Committee Members and the Democratic Support Officer everyone 

will be asked to withdraw from the meeting The Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee 
may be called back to the meeting to advise on the wording of the decision the Sub-
Committee Members will have made during private deliberation. 

 
The Applicant will be advised that the decision made by the Sub-Committee will be 
made public within 5 working days of the meeting.



 

 

PUBLIC SESSION 
 

AGENDA 
 

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION 
If the emergency alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building immediately by the 
nearest available fire exit and proceed to the area outside the Ramada Encore Hotel 
on Charles Street as directed by Democratic Services staff. Further instructions will 
then be given. 
 
1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR  
 

 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 

 Members are asked to declare any interests they may have in the business to 
be discussed.  
 

4. APPLICATION TO RENEWAL A SEXUAL 
ENTERTAINMENT VENUE LICENCE: PLATINUM 
LACE, 1 ABBEY STREET, LEICESTER  

 

Appendix A 

 The Director of Neighbourhood and Environmental Services submits a report. 
 
Report attached. A copy of the associated documentation is attached for 
Members only. Further copies are available on the Council’s website at 
www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk or by phoning Democratic Support on (0116) 
4546350.  
 

5. APPLICATION TO RENEW A SEXUAL 
ENTERTAINMENT VENUE LICENCE: SPEARMINT 
RHINO, 64 BELGRAVE GATE, LEICESTER  

 

Appendix B 

 The Director of Neighbourhood and Environmental Services submits a report. 
 
Report attached. A copy of the associated documentation is attached for 
Members only. Further copies are available on the Council’s website at 
www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk or by phoning Democratic Support on (0116) 
4546350.  
 

6. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS  
 

 

http://www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk/
http://www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk/


 WARDS AFFECTED 
 Castle 
 
 
 
 

 
FORWARD TIMETABLE OF CONSULTATION AND MEETINGS: 
Licensing Enforcement Sub-Committee 2 July 2021 
 _________________________________________________________________________  
 

Application to Renew a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence 
 _________________________________________________________________________  
 
Report of the Director of Neighbourhood and Environmental Services 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

1.1. This report provides information for Members about an application made to renew a 
sexual entertainment venue (SEV) licence under the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982, as amended by the Policing and Crime Act 2009, to assist them 
in determining the outcome of that application. 

 
2. Recommendations (or OPTIONS) 

 
2.1 Having considered the application and representation(s), Members may 

• Renew the licence in accordance with the application 
• Renew the licence subject to additional and/or varied conditions 
• Reject the application 

 
 
3. Summary 

 
3.1. This report outlines an application for the renewal of a licence for a sexual 

entertainment venue for Platinum Lace, 1 Abbey Street, Leicester and summarises the 
representation received. It also refers to the Leicester City Council Policy on Licensing 
of Sexual Entertainment Venues and provides other pertinent information specific to 
this application. 

 
4. Location Plan 
 
4.1 A location plan highlighting where the premises is situated is attached at 

Appendix A. This plan also shows what other buildings surround the premise. 
 
5. Application 

 
5.1 An application was received on 16 March 2021 from Aviary Management Limited for the 

renewal of their Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence for Platinum Lace, 1 Abbey 
Street, Leicester LE1 3TE. A copy of the application is attached at Appendix B. 
 

 
1

Appendix A



5.2 The application is for the provision of sexual entertainment during the following hours: 
 

Day Hours 
Monday Unrestricted – 24 Hours 
Tuesday Unrestricted – 24 Hours 
Wednesday Unrestricted – 24 Hours 
Thursday Unrestricted – 24 Hours 
Friday Unrestricted – 24 Hours 
Saturday Unrestricted – 24 Hours 
Sunday Unrestricted – 24 Hours 

 
5.3 Aviary Management Limited holds a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 for 

the premises concerned and for the same hours. The application under consideration is 
separate to the regime imposed by the 2003 Act. 

 
5.4 The applicant is required to serve a copy of their application on the Chief Officer of 

Police and to inform other interested parties by way of a notice on site and in the local 
paper. These requirements have been satisfied for this application. 

 
5.5 The applicant is also required to submit additional information with the application, 

including formal criminal record checks for the applicant, managers and any other 
persons who may receive financial gain from the business. The disclosures that have 
been received in relation to this application are attached to the application. 

 
6. Representations 

 
6.1 A representation was received on 18 April 2021 from a local resident. The 

representation refers to the establishments being there to use women to service men’s 
sexual gratification, or titillation. This is degrading to women, it objectifies women’s 
bodies, and teaches men and boys that women can be used. It runs counter to good 
sex and relationships education, which It also refers to a review of the Sexual 
Entertainment Venue Policy. 
 

6.2 A copy of the representation is attached at Appendix B1. 
 

6.3 The morality of SEVs is not a matter that Members may take account of when 
determining the application.  
 

6.4 The applicants representative has submitted additional information in support of their 
application and this is attached at D to the report. 
 

7. Suitability of applicants 
 
7.1 The Council’s Policy on Licensing Sexual Entertainment Venues refers to the suitability 

of applicants. The Council may refuse an application if it considers that the applicant is 
unsuitable to hold the licence by reason of having been convicted of an offence or for 
any other reason. 

 
7.2 When determining whether the applicant is unsuitable, the City Council will give 

consideration to whether the applicant: 
• is honest 

2



• has any relevant convictions identified on their CRB disclosure 
• has sufficient appropriate experience of running a sexual entertainment venue 
• understands the conditions that will be attached to the licence 
• that the operator is proposing a credible management structure and operating 

plan that will ensure compliance with all conditions and legal requirements 
• can be relied upon to act in the best interests of performers, e.g. in how they are 

remunerated, the facilities they enjoy, how they are protected and how and by 
whom their physical and psychological welfare is monitored 

• can be relied upon to protect the public, e.g. transparent charging, freedom from 
solicitation 

• can show a track record of management of compliant premises, or that s/he will 
employ individuals who have such a track record 

• does not operate as an agency for unsuitable controllers or beneficiaries. 
 
7.3 In determining the above the City Council will base their judgement on information on 

the application form, written representations received, information provided at the 
hearing and on the results of any additional interviews with the applicant or enquiries of 
third parties that may take place. 

 
8. Location of premises 

 
8.1 The Council’s Policy on Licensing Sexual Entertainment Venues deals with the locality 

of premises to be licensed as SEVs. 
 
Locality 
 

8.2 The policy sets a limit of five SEVs in the city centre and Braunstone Gate area. This is 
an existing business seeking to renew their licence which they have held since 1 April 
2012. There are currently three licensed Sexual Entertainment Venues in Leicester City 
Centre (including the one subject to this application). 

 
Character 
 

8.3 The policy also sets out the character of areas that are considered appropriate to locate 
SEVs in. This is based on: 
• the potential for sexual entertainment venues to cause offence and nuisance to 

sensitive premises; 
• the use land and buildings are put to; 
• the need to preserve the image of the city to encourage visitors, investment and 

regeneration; 
• the response to the consultation it has carried out; and 
• its experience and policy in licensing and in particular licensing of other sex 

establishments. 
 

8.4 The City Council considers that the appropriate area in which sexual entertainment 
venues should be located are areas associated with the night time economy. Officers 
consider that Platinum Lace is on the edge of an area associated with the night time 
economy. 

 
8.5 The City Council does not consider the following locations as suitable locations for 

sexual entertainment venues: 
3



• shopping centres and main shopping streets; 
• areas which are predominately residential; and 
• areas which are predominately made up of offices. 

 
8.6 Officers have visited the area and note that the premises is on a main road. Next door 

is a Shisha Lounge and an estate agent. On the opposite side of the road is St 
Margaret’s Bus Station. 

 
Vicinity 

 
Vicinity 
 

8.7 Finally, the policy identifies types of sensitive premises that SEVs should not be 
located next to. This is based on: 
 
• the potential for sexual entertainment venues to cause offence and nuisance to 

sensitive premises; 
• the use land and buildings are put to; 
• the response to the consultation it has carried out; and 
• its experience and policy in licensing and in particular licensing of other sex 

establishments. 
 

8.8 The City Council considers that sexual entertainment venues should not be located in 
the vicinity of the following types of venue: 
 
• places of worship; 
• schools and other educational establishments; 
• community facilities such as libraries and community centres 
• residential premises; and 
• buildings of cultural or historical significance, such as museums and the Town 

Hall. 
 
8.9 Officers have visited the location and the premise is not considered to be near any of 

the above type of premises 
 
9. Layout of premises 
 
9.1 Members should give consideration to the layout of the premises, and how this may 

impact on the way the business will be run if an SEV licence is granted. The plan 
submitted with the application should give Members some assistance in this regard, 
Ordinarily a site visit would be arranged however due to Covid-19 and ensuring 
minimal travel and social distancing this has not be arranged. The applicants have 
been asked to provide additional information regarding the layout of the premises for 
members. 

 
9.2 Some of the standard conditions (see section 10) concern the layout of the premises 

(namely conditions 8, 13, 14, 15 and 16).  
 
 
 
 

4



10. Conditions 
 
10.1 The City Council’s policy states that standard conditions will apply to all licences for 

SEVs. The current standard conditions are set out in Appendix C.  
 
10.2 The Licensing Committee may decide to impose additional conditions when it 

determines the application. 
 
10.3 It is suggested that Members add a condition to confirm that any licence issued is for 

the premises in its existing layout and for the managers listed, and that any changes 
will need to be approved by the City Council. 

 
11. FINANCIAL, LEGAL AND OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1. Financial Implications 

 
The renewal fee paid by the applicant is £3279.00.  

 
11.2. Legal Implications 
 
 Paragraph 12 of Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions Act 

1982) sets out the grounds for refusing an application for the grant, renewal or transfer 
of a licence. 

 
 A licence must not be granted:  

• to a person under the age of 18; 
• to a person who is for the time being disqualified due to the person having had a 

previous licence revoked in the area of the appropriate authority within the last 12 
months;  

• to a person, other than a body corporate, who is not resident in an European 
Economic Area (EEA) State, or was not so resident throughout the period of six 
months immediately preceding the date when the application was made; or  

• to a body corporate which is not incorporated in an EEA State; or 
• to a person who has, within a period of 12 months immediately preceding the 

date when the application was made, been refused the grant or renewal of a 
licence for the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in respect of which the 
application is made, unless the refusal has been reversed on appeal 

 
 A licence may be refused where: 

• the applicant is unsuitable to hold the licence by reason of having been convicted 
of an offence or for any other reason;  

• if the licence were to be granted, renewed or transferred the business to which it 
relates would be managed by or carried on for the benefit of a person, other than 
the applicant, who would be refused the grant, renewal or transfer of such a 
licence if he made the application himself;  

• the number of sex establishments, or of sex establishments of a particular kind, in 
the relevant locality at the time the application is determined is equal to or 
exceeds the number which the authority consider is appropriate for that locality; 

• that the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate, having regard: 
• to the character of the relevant locality; or 
• to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; or  

5



• to the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in 
respect of which the application is made 

 
  
 
 A decision to refuse a licence must be relevant to one or more of the above grounds. 
 
 There is no right of appeal against a refusal to grant a licence for the reasons identified 

in Paragraph 4.3(c) or 4.3(d) above. 
 
  
12. Other Implications 
 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS YES/NO Paragraph/References 
Within Supporting information 

Equal Opportunities No  
Policy No  
Sustainable and Environmental No  
Crime and Disorder No   
Human Rights Act No   
Elderly/People on Low Income No  
Climate Change No  
 
 
 
13. Background Papers – Local Government Act 1972 
 
13.1 Licensing Committee report ‘Procedure for the determination of applications for Sexual 

Entertainment Venue licences’ – 6 October 2011 
 
13.2 Mayor and Cabinet report ‘Sexual Entertainment Venue policy – Setting the limit on the 

number of premises’ – 4 July 2011 
 
13.3 Licensing Committee report ‘Conditions on Sexual Entertainment Venue Licences’ 7July 

2011 
 
13.4 Licensing Committee / Cabinet report ‘Licensing of Sexual Entertainment Venues’ – 10 

February 2011 / 7 March 2011 
 
13.5 Council report ‘Licensing of sexual entertainment venues’ – 25 November 2010 
 
13.6 Cabinet report ‘Licensing of sexual entertainment venues’ – 21 June 2010 
 
13.7 Licensing Committee report  ‘Licensing of sexual entertainment venues’ - 23 February 

2010 
 
14. Consultations 

6



14.1 The Licensing Authority is not obliged to consult any parties with regard to applications 
for SEV licences. However, the applicant is required to serve a copy of their 
application on the Chief Officer of Police and to inform other interested parties by way 
of a notice on site and in the local paper. 

 
  
Report Author 
 

Deborah Bragg 
Licensing Manager (Policy and Applications) 
0116 4541924 
 
Deborah.bragg@leicester.gov.uk  
 
 
Appendices Content 
A Location Plan 
B  Application 
B1 Representation 
C  Standard Conditions 
D  Additional information from applicants representative 
 
 
 

 
  
 

7

mailto:Deborah.bragg@leicester.gov.uk


Based upon O.S. mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes ©Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution.
Leicester City Council Licence No. LA 100019264,   07 June 2021 1:1024 at A4

Platinum Lace

Appendix A

8



Leicester 
City Council 

APPLICATION FOR @FT /RENEWAL / iIeY ¥ 'R®@ER 
OF A LICENCE FORA SEX ESTABLISHMENT. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982 
PART II SCHEDULE 3. 

All applicants are required to submit a 1: 100 scale plan showing the premises or part of the premises to be licensed. 

The fullest possible information must be given in answer to each question. Please use continuation sheets where 
necessary. 

SECTION 1 - ABOUT THE FIRST APPLICANT 

a) A individual 
b) petnerohip er ether unincorporated 

Is the applicant: body 
c) A body corporate 

(Delete those that do not apply) 

Full name of FIRST applicant or body applying for AvA.f Au©&4e VT cu4 rTeD 
the licence. If an individual or partnership please 
state any previous name(s) and date(s) changed 

Date and place of birth _,.--- 
  , 

Daytime telephone number(s)    
 { 

Email address    

aoenc. & uso&$S ¢err&g 

Applicant's permanent address. If a company 7k4€0&.D S7R&er 
please give registered or principal address o &HM woo! 

M&rs opG 4.PJ 
 

Address to which any communication is to be  
sent  

  

Page 1 of 7 
SEV appn v2e -Sep 2018 

Appendix B

9



Has the applicant been resident in the UK le5 
throughout the period of G months preceding the 
date of this application? Please give details of 
addresses and dates. 

Does the applicant have any convictions/ Jo S€G 1utAyibot_ £Cos2To) 
cautions? 
If the answer is yes please give details below: 

CONVICTIONS 

Forename Surname Former 
name (if any) Court Date Offence Penalty or 

sentence 

CAUTIONS 

Forename Surname Former 
name (if any) Court Date Offence Penalty or 

sentence 

What is the applicant's interest in the premises? 

a) Freehold 
b) Leasehold 

i) Main lease 
ii) Sub-lease 

Page 2 of 7 
SEV appn v2e -Sep 2018 

10



SECTION 2-ABOUT ADDITIONAL PARTIES 
Please complete a separate continuation sheetforeach additional applicant, each Director and any other 
persons who will manage or otherwise be involved in running the establishment or who will have an 
interest / will benefit from the venue. Continuation sheets are available on Leicester City Council's 
website at www.leicester.gov .uk/licensing/sex-establishments 

Number of continuation sheets acoompanying this TRae (cos Ds CHecS) 
application: 

Details of any other parties or companies who are 
/a likely to benefit financially from the business in any 

way 

SECTION 3--ABOUT THE PREMISES 

Trading name tarns UA uc£. (eccesre ) 

Description S7RI PTe«Se veuE 

] ABB€7 SrRser 
Address Lcic&sTe? 

LGr 3r€ 
Telephone number at the premises o1l 262 4-44-5 

STZ.I PTents e ¢ 1vvDe TiBe (ee) 
Give details about what forms of relevant 
entertainment will take place on the DAsc425 
premises 

If only part of the building is to be licensed, C, 2ouD d {fiesr {@.csR 
give details:- g tSees7 (CA<su5 Dows/ 
(a) Of the use ( s) to which the remainder of S&co0D {-tcnn. e.er poor) 
the premises will be put 

. Sao> LUA2R 
(b) The names of those who are = S(Mo) Gop.po0 responsible for the management of the 
remainder of the premises: - DR@es uyse 

Opening time Closing time 
Monday o01 co Hies 

Please state the proposed hours of Tuesday 
Wednesday operation for the premises Thursday - T - 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday oo:a0 HRS 

Page 3 of 7 
SEV appn v2e - Sep 2018 

11



If this application relates to a vehicle, vessel 
or stall, state where it is to be used as a sex ju/R establishment . 

 

DA M&  \M Se   
Name, permanent address and date of  
birth of the person who will be in day to   
day management control of the premises Le CGSTes4IR€ 

  
Sa oJ Pero, w -pf  

Name, permanent address and date of  birth of any other person( s) who will be 
engaged in managing the premises  

 
Give date and name of newspaper in LEtcesTe HG2col2{ which public notice of this application is to 
be made. 
---- - -- -- ------- 333] 43 3j l3j]3 l,33] ,3j], ,3jg3 433]] 43, 333]] l,3j], 3j33, l3 l3j33 43, 3 433 3]3 l3jg 3, 4,,3 

SECTION 4- ABOUT THE LICENCE 

FIRST APPLICATION _- 

Choose this option if this is the first time the premises has been licensed or if the previous licence for 
the premises has lapsed. 

" You MUST provide a 1:100sca of the premises and a criminal record certificate for every 
applicant, director and persons who will manage or otherwise be involved in running the 
establishment-of who will have an interest / will benefit from the venue 

RENEWAL APPLICATION ✓Choose this option if you already hold a licence for the premises that is due to expire 

VARIATION APPLICATION 
Choose this option if you are proposing to change the hours of operation, the premises layout, etc 

TRANSFER APPLICATION 
Choose this option to transfer the licence from one licence holder to another 

Page 4 of 7 
SEV appn v2e - Sep 2018 

12



SECTION 5- ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

I/Ne enclose the relevant fee: 
• Tile applieoetie I @e,99e% ✓• Renewal application - £3,279 
• en ielie e,006 
• Fan se @4,09 

I/We enclose a basic disclosure showing the criminal record of every applicant, every 
person to be involved in the management of the premises, and any person who will ✓receive financial benefit from the business (i.e., all persons referred to in sections 1 & 2 of 
this application form). 

I/Ne enclose a plan of scale 1: 100 showing all parts of the premises to be licensed, the ✓extent of the premises and its location. 

I/Ve confirm that I/we have read Leicester City Council's 'Policy on Licensing Sexual 
✓Entertainment Venues' and that I/we am/are aware of the standard conditions of licensing. 

I/Ve confirm that a copy of this application will be been served on the Chief Officer of ✓Police at Mansfield House Police Station, 74 Belgrave Gate, Leicester, LE1 6GG, within 
the next 7 days. 

I/Ve confirm that a notice publicising this application will be displayed on or near the 
premises in a place where it can conveniently be read by the public, and that the notice 

✓will be in place from the date of this application for a continuous period of 21 days. The 
notice shall be A4 or larger, a yellow colour and printed legibly in black ink of font size 16 
pt or larger. 

/ 
I/Ve confirm that a notice of application will be published in a local newspaper circulating ✓in the local area within 7 days of the date of this application, and that a copy of the 
newspaper in which the notice appears will be forwarded to the Licensing section. 

SECTION 6- DECLARATION BY APPLICANT(S) 

I understand that any person who, in connection with an application for the grant, renewal, variation 
or transfer of a licence, makes a false statement which he knows to be false in any material 
respect, or which he does not believe to be true, shall be guilty of an offence punishable on 
summary conviction by a fine not exceeding £20,000. 

I declare that the information I have given in this form is true and complete in every respect. 

Where the application is made on behalf of a limited company, the company secretary or director(s) 
should sign this form. In the case of a partnership each partner should sign, using continuation 
sheets if ne ary. 

FRST APPLICANT SECOND APPLICANT 

stoned  Signed: 

Name: Name:  
Capacity:      Capacity: 

Date: (/ 3/2c2 Date: 

Page 5 of 7 
SEV appn v2e - Sep 2018 

13



Notes for applicant: 

This application form should be completed by the first applicant. 

Please complete a separate continuation sheet for each additional applicant, each Director and any other persons 
who will manage or otherwise be involved in running the establishment or who will have an interest/ 
will benefit from the venue. Continuation sheets are available on Leicester City Council's website at 
www.leicester.gov.uk/licensing/sex-establishments 

Any personal data that you provide will be processed in accordance with current data protection laws. 
It will be used by Leicester City Council and our partners to deliver and improve services and fulfil our 
legal duties. We will not disclose any personal information to anyone else unless required or allowed 
to do so by law. Read more about how we use personal data in our Privacy Notice on our website 
www.leicester.gov.uk 

The fees will be reviewed annually. 

Standard conditions will be attached to all sex establishment licences. 

Leicester City Council's Policy on Licensing Sexual Entertainment Venues is available on the council's website at 
www.leicester.gov.uk/licensing/sex-establishments along with further information and guidance. 

If you have any further questions please contact the Licensing section on (0116) 4543040. 

Page 6 of 7 
SEV appn v2e -Sep 2018 

14



. 
; -0 

·j } c °"P 2 E ~. 'Sa» 34 3 ± ? 
£ 

C) 1° 1 1 ®-± 
£ 

(:) : ' , 7j» l ± !: "]· · li] 4» • lh ±1 1 

15



I © l 
Hi# 

1 i 

3 oooo 

c 

'A 

,5 
] 

a» l; j s I 
' E a 

A 
I 

g I D n! 2 
3 f i r 1: 1 ±ls isl. s I· it; ii 

t 

I 3 0 ?  » E 
i 

! j --# J : 
' 

J Do L I 
j 
I 

I ; 

t 

[ 
I I , 
I 
v , 

1 ! ; 

[I 

! 
i 
! 

·j ! 

16



Ago , 

© I r s [--- 
? 
l» s .F I } T j » 

s i ill, g ( 

bl# ,. p E f I o 1j; £ ii; 4ls 1 2? E I g=== 1 w 1 'l» 4 1 .. F. 

I 
: L------- --··- -- - ._I L - 

I I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

I 
i! 

i 

I 

I 

17



·- I I 
+ Il 
1 I 
ii w il % thi ti] I 

' I : I 

l 
lr 

c 
0 o 
s 
'L, 

a z 
0 
DO 
(} ' n j 

r 
i! 

ssaa'le 

i I 
l; 7 

I 
I 

I 

I I 

ii 
I 

I 
' I 

i i 

18



Leicester 
City Council 

APPLICATION FOR GRANT/RENEW.AL/VARIATION/TRANSFER 
OF A LICENCE FORA SEX ESTABLISHMENT. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT {MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS} ACT 1982 
PART II SCHEDULE 3. 

Please complete a separate sheet for each additional applicant, each Director and any other 
persons who will manage or otherwise be involved in running the establishment or 
who will have an interest / will benefit from the venue 

ADDITIONAL APPLICANTS / DIRECTORS / PERSONS WITH AN INTEREST IN 
THE PREMISES (Please delete as appropriate) 

Full name and any previous name(s) and RRe> J#es oY Sc date(s) changed 

Date and place of birth    

Daytime telephone number(s)  
Email address  

   
Permanent address. If a company please 

 
give registered or principal address  

 

Has this person been resident in the UK Yes throughout the period of 6 months 
preceding the date of this application? 
Please give details of addresses and 

' A8ov€ dates 

Does this person have any convictions / 
cautions? o If the answer is yes please give details 
below: 
CONVICTIONS 

Former Penalty or Forename Surname name (if Court Date Offence 
any) sentence 

19



CAUTIONS 
Former Penalty or 

Forename Surname name (if Court Date Offence 
anv) sentence 

What is the applicant's interest in the a) Freehold 
premises? b) ±oesehold 

i) Mein lease 
ii) Suh-lease 

c) Other (please give details) 

,erve2Ac wwauce p [9 

NOTE 

Any personal data that you provide will be processed in accordance with current data 
protection laws. It will be used by Leicester City Council and our partners to deliver 
and improve services and fulfil our legal duties. We will not disclose any personal 
information to anyone else unless required or allowed to do so by law. Read more 
about how we use personal data in our Privacy Notice on our website 
www.leicester.gov.uk 

20



Leicester 
City Council 

APPLICATION FOR GRANT / RENEWAL I VARIATION / TRANSFER 
OF A LICENCE FOR A SEX ESTABLISHMENT. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCEL L ANOUS PROVISIONS} ACT 1982 
PART II SCHEDULE 3. 

Please complete a separate sheet for each additional applicant, each Director and any other 
persons who will manage or otherwise be involved in running the establishment or 
who will have an interest I will benefit from the venue 

ADDITIONAL APPLICANTS / DIRECTORS / PERSONS WITH AN INTEREST IN 
THE PREMISES (Please delete as appropriate) 

Full name and any previous name(s) and Swor0 Go2Do) date(s) changed 

Date and place of birth   

Daytime telephone number(s)   

Email address    

 

Permanent address. If a company please  
give registered or principal address  

 
Has this person been resident in the UK 

Yes throughout the period of 6 months 
preceding the date of this application? 
Please give details of addresses and s f\Bove dates 

Does this person have any convictions / 
cautions? lo If the answer is yes please give details 
below: 
CONVICTIONS 

Former Penalty or Forename Surname name (if Court Date Offence 
any) sentence 

21



CAUTIONS 
Former Penalty or Forename Surname name (if Court Date Offence 
any) sentence 

What is the applicant's interest in the a) ·Freehold 
premises? b) leasehold 

i) Mein lease 
ii) Sub lease 

c) Other (please give details) 

[oaoce Dgccr sf? 

NOTE 

Any personal data that you provide will be processed in accordance with current data 
protection laws. It will be used by Leicester City Council and our partners to deliver 
and improve services and fulfil our legal duties. We will not disclose any personal 
information to anyone else unless required or allowed to do so by law. Read more 
about how we use personal data in our Privacy Notice on our website 
www.leicester.gov.uk 

22



Leicester 
City Council 

APPLICATION FOR GRANT /RENEWAL/VARIATION/TRANSFER 
OF A LICENCE FOR A SEX ESTABLISHMENT. 

LOCAL GOVERNM ENT (MISCE1 L ANOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982 
PART II SCHEDULE 3. 

Please complete a separate sheet for each additional applicant, each Director and any other 
persons who will manage or otherwise be involved in running the establishment or 
who will have an interest / will benefit from the venue 

ADDITIONAL APPLICANTS/ DIRECTORS/ PERSONS WITH AN INTEREST IN 
THE PREMISES (Please delete as appropriate) 

8 

Full name and any previous name(s) and Sos Vere WA2R, 
date(s) changed 

Date and place of birth   . 

Daytime telephone number(s)   

Email address  
 

Permanent address. If a company please   
give registered or principal address 

 
Has this person been resident in the UK Ye> throughout the period of 6 months 
preceding the date of this application? 
Please give details of addresses and 

Bou€ dates > 
Does this person have any convictions / 
cautions? o If the answer is yes please give details 
below: 
CONVICTIONS 

Former Penalty or Forename Surname name (if Court Date Offence 
any) sentence 

23



CAUTIONS 
Former Penalty or Forename Surname name (if Court Date Offence 
any) sentence 

What is the applicant's interest in the a) Freehold > 

premises? b) leasehold 
i) Main lease, 
ii) Sul leas@= 

c) Other (please give details) 

MMrA©, I,, DI2ccroC 

NOTE 

Any personal data that you provide will be processed in accordance with current data 
protection laws. It will be used by Leicester City Council and our partners to deliver 
and improve services and fulfil our legal duties. We will not disclose any personal 
information to anyone else unless required or allowed to do so by law. Read more 
about how we use personal data in our Privacy Notice on our website 
www.leicester.gov.uk 

24



r 

25



 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
  

26



27



 

 
 
 

+

 28



APPLICATION FOR A SEX ESTABLISHMENT LICENCE 
(RENEWAL) 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 
1982 

PART II SCHEDULE 3. 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT AVIARY (MANAGEMENT) LIMITED 
APPLIED ON 16 MARCH 2021 TO LEICESTER CITY COUNCIL IN 
RESPECT OF THE PREMISES KNOWN AS PLATINUM LACE, 1 
ABBEY STREET, LEICESTER LE1 3TE UNDER THE PROVISIONS 
OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) 
ACT 1982, PART H, SCHEDULE 3. FOR A LICENCE (RENEWAL) TO 
USE THE PREMISES AS A SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUE. 

ANY OBJECTIONS TO THIS APPLICATION MUST BE SENT IN 
WRITING TO :- 

LICENSING AUTHORITY 
LEICESTER CITY COUNCIL 
115 CHARLES STREET 
LEICESTER 
LE11FZ 

NOT LATER THAN 28 DAYS AFTER THE DATE OF THIS 
APPLICATION, STATING THE GROUNDS OF OBJECTION. THE 
IDENTITY OF OBJECTORS WILL NOT BE REVEALED TO 
APPLICANTS UNLESS THE OBJECTORS SO AGREE IN WRITING. 

TL T SOLICITORS, 1 REDCLIFF STREET, BRISTOL BS1 6TP 

29



APPLICATION FOR A SEX ESTABLISHMENT LICENCE (RENEWAL) 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982 

PART II SCHEDULE 3. 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT AVIARY (MANAGEMENT) LIMITED APPLIED ON 16 MARCH 2021 TO 
THE LEICESTER CITY COUNCIL IN RESPECT OF THE PREMISES KNOWN AS PLATINUM LACE, 1 ABBEY 
STREET, LEICESTER LE1 3TE UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS 
PROVISIONS) ACT 1982, PART H, SCHEDULE 3. FOR A LICENCE (RENEWAL) TO USE THE PREMISES AS A 
SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUE. 

ANY OBJECTIONS TO THIS APPLICATION MUST BE SENT IN WRITING TO:- 

LICENSING AUTHORITY 

LEICESTER CITY COUNCIL 

115 CHARLES STREET 

LEICESTER 

LE11FZ 

NOT LATER THAN 28 DAYS AFTER THE DATE OF THIS APPLICATION, STATING THE GROUNDS OF 

OBJECTION. THE IDENTITY OF OBJECTORS WILL NOT BE REVEALED TO APPLICANTS UNLESS THE 

OBJECTORS SO AGREE IN WRITING. 

TLT SOLICITORS, 1 REDCLIFF STREET, BRISTOL BS1 6TP 

30



I wish to lodge objections to both these licence renewals on the grounds that, by continuing 
to nod through these licences, the Leicester City Council is in breach of its Public Sector 
Equality Duty.  

These establishments use women to service men’s sexual gratification, or titillation. This is 
degrading to women, it objectifies women’s bodies, and teaches men and boys that women 
can be used. It runs counter to good sex and relationships education, which it is now 
compulsory to teach in schools. There is no place for strip clubs in Leicester, the current 
written policy on location makes no sense, and the Council, if it had the political will to do 
so, could easily revise the policy to set a NIL limit on the number of such establishments, 
give the existing 3 businesses 12 months notice to change the nature of their business, and 
set a good example to other local authorities by having none of them. 

Appendix B1

31



Amendments approved by Director of Environmental Services / Asst. City Mayor Jan 2013 

Version 4 – January 2013 

Leicester City Council 

Standard Conditions for Licences for Sexual Entertainment Venues 

1. The licence or a clear copy shall be prominently displayed at all times so as to
be readily and easily seen by all persons using the premises.

2. The premises may not be used under the terms of the licence unless and until
any necessary permission and/or consents have been obtained pursuant to the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the Building Act 1984 or any
legislation amending or replacing the same

3. The licence holder, or an appointed deputy, shall be on duty at the premises at
all times that the premises are open for business to exercise general
supervision and control of the premises.

4. The licence holder must maintain a daily register in which shall be recorded the
name and address of any person who is made responsible for managing the
premises in the licence holders absence and the names and addresses of other
persons employed in the premises, including entertainers, door supervisors and
security staff. The register is to be completed each day within thirty minutes of
the premises being opened for business and be updated as additional staff
arrive. The register is to be available for inspection by the police and by
authorised officers of the Council.

5. All members of staff, other than performers, must wear appropriate
identification whilst on duty on the premises indicating that they are members
of staff.

6. There must be no activities designed to obtain custom by means of personal
solicitation, touting or distribution of printed matter anywhere outside of the
premises within the City of Leicester.

7. Any images displayed outside of the premises shall be designed so as not to
cause offence to members of the public. No, photograph, sketch, painting or
any form of advertisement or display shall be displayed by or on behalf of the
licensee on, outside or within the premises in a position where it is visible to
the public if the Council regards it as unsuitable for exhibition to the public.

8. The layout of the premises shall be designed to ensure that no activity taking
place inside the premises is visible from outside through any external openings,
such as doors and windows, even when these are open.

9. There shall be prominently and legibly displayed inside the premises in a
position where it can be conveniently read, a notice showing all charges and
prices for entertainment provided on the premises.

10. No person under the age of 18 shall be admitted to any part of the premises

Appendix C

32



Amendments approved by Director of Environmental Services / Asst. City Mayor Jan 2013 
 

Version 4 – January 2013 
 

and the licence holder must adopt the Challenge 21 policy on admissions and 
there will be adequate, documented training for staff on its implementation. 
This training will be repeated every twelve months, in order to retain focus, 
and records of that training will be provided to Council licensing officers and 
police on request. 

 
11. No person under the age of 18 shall be employed in the business of the sex 

establishment.  
 
12. The licence holder must ensure that a suitable number of trained security staff 

are employed to supervise admission to the premises and all public areas inside 
the premises at all times the premises are open for business. Security staff 
must be registered with the Security Industry Authority. 

 
13. All areas of the premises, including private booths, must be adequately 

monitored by either security staff or CCTV to ensure that licence conditions are 
complied with. 

 
14. CCTV must be installed and maintained in accordance with the following   
 

• CCTV shall be of a type to be approved by the City Council to monitor 
events at the premises and shall be installed to the satisfaction of the 
Council.  The CCTV system shall be professionally installed and be capable 
of consistently producing pictures clearly showing the identity of persons 
frequenting the premises and in the vicinity of the premises.  The CCTV 
shall operate continuously during the permitted hours. 

 
• All recordings must be retained for a period of 28 days and shall be made 

available to the Police or an authorised Officer of the Council on demand. 
 
• Notices shall be clearly displayed inside the premises indicating that a 

CCTV system is in operation. 
 
15. A secure changing room is to be made available for performers. The door to 

the changing room is to be locked using a combination lock. The changing 
room shall be provided with suitable refreshment facilities for performers 
including a supply of drinking water. No members of the public are to be 
allowed in the changing room at any time. 

 
16. There must be an adequate separation between stage areas and the audience 

and the performer should be able to leave the stage area without the need to 
walk through the audience. 

 
17. Performers shall be aged not less than 18 years. The licence holder must 

undertake adequate identity checks of all performers to ensure that they are 18 
years of age or over and have the right to work in the UK. Copies of all 
documents used to verify identities together with the name, address, a 
photograph and date of birth of the performer must be retained for inspection. 

33



Amendments approved by Director of Environmental Services / Asst. City Mayor Jan 2013 
 

Version 4 – January 2013 
 

 
18. Routine monitoring should be carried out to ensure that drugs are not being 

used by performers. Written records should be retained of all monitoring to be 
carried out. 

 
19. The licence holder must allow confidential access to performers and other staff 

by Council officers and other agencies working on behalf of the Council in 
respect of compliance monitoring and the provision of advice and support to 
those working in the sexual entertainment industry. 

 
20. The licence holder must allow access to appointed officers of the local authority 

to all parts of the premises, at any time that the premises is open for business, 
to determine whether the conditions attached to the licence are being complied 
with. 

 
21. The Licence Holder will arrange for performers to be escorted by security staff 

from the premises to the performer’s vehicle or secure transport at the end of 
their shift. 
 

22. The licence holder must adopt and implement a code of conduct for 
performers, a code of conduct for customers and a formal complaints 
procedure. 

 
23. Performers shall only perform on the stage area, or to seated customers, or in 

such other areas of the premises as specified on the licence. 
 

24. There must be no displays of nudity except during performances in areas 
specified on the licence. 

 
25. There must be no exchange of personal information or contact details between 

performers and members of the public. 
 
26. The following will not be allowed as part of any performance on the premises: 
 

• Any physical contact between a performers and a member of the 
audience (other than brief incidental contact of hands during payment)  

• Any physical contact between performers 
• The use of sex toys or other props, other than clothing  
• Audience participation 
• Photography or video recording 
• Mixed gender performances 
• The performance or simulation of any sex act or masturbation 
• Straddling of a member of the audience by a performer 

 
27. Any departure from the above condition must be agreed in writing with the City 

Council before any departure takes place. 
 

34



Amendments approved by Director of Environmental Services / Asst. City Mayor Jan 2013 
 

Version 4 – January 2013 
 

28. The licence issued is for the premises in its existing layout and the managers 
listed and any changes will need to be approved by the City Council. The licensee 
should notify the Council’s Licensing Department of any temporary management 
cover. 
 

 

35



From: Matthew Phipps
To: Deborah Bragg
Cc: Piers Warne
Subject:  
Date: 24 June 2021 09:51:19

Dear Deborah

In anticipation of the licensing hearing listed for 10.00am on Friday 2 July, I thought it would be
helpful to make some brief legal observations about the matter. Please pass to your legal officer
colleague, as they may want to have a look before the hearing and please include within the
committee papers. I am not proposing to seek to cover off every last point within this note but I hope
the following may assist. 

1. Since the last renewal of this licence in 2020 The Corona Virus Regulations have prohibited
SEV premises from operating for the purposes of this licence.  The premises was closed
throughout the renewal period in question. The premises has opened as a bar since 10th

June 2021 under the premises licence and without any of the activities that would otherwise
engage this licence.

2. The objection to the renewal of the licence does not raise any commentary about the
operation of the premises.  Nor could it, for the reasons referenced above.

3. There is nothing before the Committee to suggest that the premises operates in a manner
that is anything other than legal and compliant.  Nor could there be, for the reasons
referenced above.

4. The service of an objection ostensibly in the same terms in relation to the renewal of two
SEV licensed premises appearing before the Committee on the same day, emphasises the
generic nature of the objection.  This objection, by its very nature, fails to take account of the
individual circumstances of the individual applications before the Committee.

5. The objection seeks to argue that the council’s equality policy is engaged by the renewal of
an SEV.  Whilst the duties imposed under The Equality Act 2010 quite rightly seek to ensure
that Local Authorities do not tolerate nor permit activities that may be unlawful or
discriminatory, the objection fails to recognise that the renewal process and the hearing
before the Committee are legal requirements under the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1982 and therefore self-evidently require a determination of a request to
conduct a lawful activity.

6. Consideration of the policy and the Act itself, perfectly properly allows for this licence to be
renewed. This would be true in a year when the premises had traded. In a year in which the
premises has been prohibited from opening, because of the Coronavirus pandemic, the
policy or the Act cannot fairly be said to legitimately advance the argument that the licence
renewal should be refused.

7. It is respectfully submitted that the specifics of the complaint raised by the objector do not go
to issues that the Committee can legitimately take into account in determining the renewal of
an SEV licence. They express the objector’s moral views on lawfully provided activities. It is
trite law that moral objections are not legitimate in the context of an otherwise lawful and
legitimate activity.  By the same token, when advocates for the temperance movement raise
representations seeking to ban the sale and consumption of alcohol, they face the same
barrier to their objection: lawful activities, if conducted properly, are perfectly legitimate and
cannot be revoked on moral grounds.

We trust that is helpful, if you have any queries please do not hesitate to contact me.

Best wishes

Matthew Phipps

Appendix D

36

mailto:matthew.phipps@TLTsolicitors.com
mailto:Deborah.Bragg@leicester.gov.uk
mailto:Piers.Warne@TLTsolicitors.com


 
 
 
 
 
 

37



LEICESTER CITY COUNCIL 

IN THE MATTER OF: 

SEV RENEWAL 2021: PLATINUM LACE, 1 ABBEY STREET LEICESTER LE1 3TE 

Applicant 

WITNESS STATEMENT OF DARREN WYSE 

I am Darren Wyse, the General Manager for Platinum Lace, 1 Abbey Street, Leicester LE1, 3TE 

{'The Premises'). I make this statement in support of the renewal of the Sexual Entertainment 

Venue Licence ('SEVL') held at The Premises. 

Background 

1 I have been the manager of the Premises since December 2004. I am also the 

Designated Premises Supervisor and hold the relevant personal licence for that role. 

2 The Premises has held an SEVL continuously since 2011 when Leicester City Council 

adopted the relevant provisions of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) 

Act 1982. However, The Premises has provided adult entertainment at the venue since 

2004. 

3 It is worth noting that at the time of the first grant of the SEVL the minutes of that 
meeting record: "The Committee believed the application complied with Leicester City 

Council's policy on the Licensing of Sexual Entertainment Venue. The Committee also 

stated that Platinum Lace set a standard that further applications needed to aspire to, 

to meet with the Policy." Since this grant we have aspired to maintain the standards set 

and where possible improve upon our policies and practices. 

4 The SEVL has been renewed annually since it was first granted without any objection. 

47555981.1 38



Plan of The Premises 

5 I have included at Appendix One a plan accompanied by photos that will give the 

Committee an overview of the layout of The Premises. This is in lieu of the usual visit to 

the premises that has not been undertaken due to the Covid Pandemic. 

Management of The Premises 

6 As general manager, I have overall responsibility for the management of The Premises, 

including ensuring the health, safety and welfare of our dancers and ensuring the good 

behaviour of customers. To these ends, we have developed a suite of documents that 

include the following: 

6.1.1 Club Rules, dealing with customer conduct, dress code and interaction with 

dancers; 

6.1.2 Dancer Code of Conduct, dealing with conduct on arrival and departure, 

dress code and interaction with customers; 

6.1.3 Door supervisors Code of Conduct, dealing with the expectations and 

standards required of door supervisors working at the premises; 

6.1.4 Dancer Welfare and Equality Policy, which ensures that all dancers are 

provided with information about support, wellbeing, safety, health and other 

matters affecting their wellbeing provided by management, as well as 

setting out the guidelines for ensuring matters brought by dancers are dealt 
with in a fair, sensitive and confidential manner. The policy also ensures 

that dancers will not discriminated against or otherwise exploited; 

6.1.5 Management checklist, to ensure that all dancers are taken through the 

information around their Code of Conduct and the Welfare and Equality 

Policy; 

6.1.6 Security and management instruction document that sets out the 
responsibilities of management and security staff to oversee and 

implement the above policies, along with alcohol licensing policies, such as 

'Challenge 25', crime scene management and spotting potential signs of 

drug use; 

We are also required to comply with the conditions on the SEVL and the Premises 

Licence, which ensure that the premises operates to the highest standards. 

47555981.1 2 39



7 Dancer welfare is at the heart of what we do and key to the success of our mutual 

endeavours. All of our policies and procedures are designed to ensure that no one is 

subject to discrimination or exploitation in a safe working environment. To date there 

have been no incidents of either. We employ a former dancer as a Dancer Welfare 

Officer, which is a management role designed to oversee all dancer welfare. 

8 Throughout my time as manager we have had a fruitful and proactive relationship with 

the Leicestershire Police and Council Licensing teams. Leicestershire Police have 

never seen the need to object to the renewal of this licence. 

9 When Best Bar None operated in Leicester, The Premises ensured that they were 

active members, winning the coveted Best Bar None 'Best Club' award in 2007 and a 

finalist in the competition each from 2008 to 2013 inclusive, after which the scheme 

was disbanded. 

Operations between March 2020 to date 

1 O We entered what has become referred to as 'lockdown one' along with all other non 

essential businesses in March 2020. Since then and throughout all of the changes, 

beginning on 4 July 2020, until now to open up the economy, SEVL premises have not 

been permitted to open, unless repurposed as a bar. 

11 As such the premises was shut from March 2020 until 10 June 2021, when we decided 

to open on a limited basis as a bar. When we re-opened, we notified the Police 
licensing officer of our intentions and have had no issues to date. However, it is unlikely 

that we will be permitted to trade our SEVL again until 19 July at the earliest as part of 

Step 4 re-opening plans. 

Signed: 

Name: DARREN WYSE 

Dated: 22 June 2021 

47555981.1 3 40



LEICESTER CITY COUNCIL 

IN THE MATTER OF: 

SEV RENEWAL 2021: PLATINUM LACE, 1 ABBEY STREET LEICESTER LE1 3TE 

Applicant 

APPENDIX ONE 

47555981.1 5 41



0 

a.r l X <...~ 

"I l' {Royal St East &. I 7----=l 
es sr secs be [ 
..7} fl /mh 

~~ I I 14 
seas 's taus g] g ss V 

Seating " <F 
A 
13 ra 

" 

{aM 
14T4NL#u 1A"I . 

1 Atay Srt, 
Lac ate LEI IT 

GROUND 
FLOOR 

Nat ta scale 

Seating 

Stage Area 

Store 

# < 42 
L-------,,--' 

'+Pl] 4 
Seating 

KEY: 
Image # / 

1 location 

/\ camera 
/±s\ canon 

All Fire poor/ 
lIE ±see 

a1112I Route _____ ......_ __ ..., 

A 
I 
I 

CZ'! 3 

Seating 

34 

I Uo "® 

CCTV in 
Operation 
Signage 

Y Height 
wall / 
Partition 

p 
1 

i 
Store Room 

Acxaibile - 
Exit To Front 
[Abbey Street} 

l 

42



{4aM 

18 

First Floor 
Lobby 

Dance 
Area 

Dance 
Area 

A Ve] 
{9 

Dance 1;-- 
Area Up 

Dance 
Area 

{ 
<; 
Up Store 

Dance Area 

Dance 
Area 22 

Dance 
Area 

First Floor 
Dance Area 

also 
supervised by 
SIA Trained 
Supervisor 

24 I 
Dance Area 

o% { Down'[ _______ J 
Dance [!] 
Area 

PLATEN/A LA€I 
moo e o 
1 Alley Se 
Sais.stat, Lit 3lE 

FIRST 
FLOOR 

Nit to scale 

28 

Dance Area 

{Abbey Street} 

43



SECOND 
FLOOR 

Not to scale 

32 

Down] 
Office Office 

Staff Room 

{Abbey Street} 

Cellar 
Basement 
Not to scale 

'J.__/'-- s_t_aff_K_it_c_h
7
en 

35 

36 

Changing 
Room 

33 

Cloakroom 

Shower 

Access to Electrical Intake I 
~--~o~n.'..'.1'!...v ...1.. --1.. _._ 

7
~n 

es pt in] 

{Abbey Street} 

44



Platinum Lace - Leicester 

Image Guide to Floor Plans 

(Image Location numerically marked 
by corresponding Triangles, as shown on Floor Plans) 

Image Location 1-Front / Main Entry & Exit (Abbey Street) 
Opening Information, Customer Information, Code of Conduct, Covid19 Guidance, 

CCTV & Signage. 

45



Image Location 2 - Reception Area {Left hand side) 
Challenge 25, Noise Consideration, Fire Evacuation Floor Plans, Liability Insurance, 

Accepted Proof of Age Information. 

@ f' ( .·I · f ] T 
I 

I 
! 

I 

I 

\ 
I 

Image Location 3 - Reception Area {Right hand side) 
Display of Premises Licence, SEV Licence, First Aid information 

46



Opening Hours 
Sunday 6 Monday. 1Opr till «4 am 

'Tuesday, Wednesday & Thursday: 9pen till «4 aim 
Fnday: 9pr till 6am 

Saturday. 8pr till 6am 

Admission Prices ; 
Sunday = Monday. £S all night oz,rt22:.. 

(non-refundable) 

Recommended Dance Pricsg  
Topliss Dane - £1O 

Fuuy Nude Danco - £29 
16 minute VIP Dance -£80 
30 mrut VIP Danes- £140 
60 minute VIP Dance- £260 

·so - 'EC.""ta,a a 
We operate the Lestor#r Cotey Craton» 2S glen, 

" Weare membes of Loogtr Caty hate) 

'&"C:TC::CZ:C"Pr+ 
" Uet phogrp±a t owrr wry 

phones p&ii&,' 9@0at st on the premiss udrg car,», 

e Apnr rneg gos sic-==:272222. 
'CCECCL"TCELEEpzz"-%» 
""LC;"CCC':±Hess«a 

"ouoy goo sa,,_ "Poor of oeui&on 
·&as ",",","° +--s « 

Image Location 4 - Reception Area (Reception desk) 
Customer Information Opening Information / pricing, House Rules/ Code of Conduct, Free phone for Taxi 

Service signage 

I ,-;,,. .. 

Image Location 5 - Reception Area (Right hand side- leading to Basement Level) 
Combination locked door leading to lower Basement staff and changing area 

47



Image Location 6- Bar Area (Toward Front Main Exit} 

Image Location 7-- Bar Area 

48



8 

Image Location 8- Main Stage Area 
Looking back towards Bar area 

I 

Image Location 8a -Main Stage Area 
Looking back towards Bar area 

49



f 

Image Location 9 - Main Floor Seating Area 
Markings show clear egress route from stage to re-dressing area 

Image Location 10- Main Floor Area Reception Area 
Combination locked door leading to lower Basement staff and changing area 

50



\ 

Image Location 11-Rear Main Fire Exit 
Stairs at rear lead up to first floor Area 

Rear Fire Exit leading to External Fire Escape 

Image Location 12- Rear Main Fire Exit - External 
Reverse side of Rear Double Fire Exit 

51



Image Location 13- Rear External Fire Exit 
Leading down from upper levels to ground floor level 

Image Location 14 -- Rear External Fire Exit Route 
Leading down to rear external Double Doors from ground floor level 

52



Image Location 15 - Rear External Fire Exit Route 
Leading out the Double Doors to Rear of Premises on to Royal Street East 

Image Location 16 - End of Rear External Fire Exit Route 
Looking back towards Rear external fire doors, from Royal Street East. 

Fire Escape signage and security gate Locked in open position during opening hours. 

53



Image Location 17 - First Floor Rear Landing/ Lobby 
Looking Down Rear Stairs 

Image Location 18 - First Floor Rear Landing/ Lobby 

54



Image Location 19 - First Floor Hallway 
Looking from Rear towards front of Premises 

Image Location 20 - Example of First Floor Dance Seating 

55



Image Location 21- Example of First Floor Dance Seating 

Image Location 22 - First Floor Single Fire Exit 
Leading to External Fire Escape at rear of Premises 

56



Image Location 23 - First Floor External Fire Escape 
Leading down External Fire Escape to rear of Premises 

Image Location 24 - First Floor Corridor 
Leading to Dance Area 

57



Image Location 25 - First Floor Dance Seating 

Image Location 26 - First Floor Dance Seating Waiting Area 

58



Image Location 27 - First Floor Dance Seating Waiting Area 

Image Location 28 - First Floor Dance Seating Waiting Area 
Double Fire Doors Leading down to Ground Floor Reception Area at front of Premises 

59



} ' 
l, 

I 
t p 
I . 

\ I I, » 
\ 

Image Location 29 - First Floor Front Stair Landing 
Leading down to Ground Floor Reception Area at front of Premises 

Image Location 30 - First Floor Front Stair Landing 
Leading up to Second Floor from Outside Ladies Toilets 

60



Image Location 31- First Floor Front Stair Landing 
Leading up to Second Floor Staff Room / Office from Outside Ladies Toilets 

Image Location 32 - Second Floor Fire Exit 
Leading rear to Rear External Fire Escape, leading out to rear of Premises 

61



Image Location 33 - Second Floor Fire Escape 
Rear External Fire Escape, leading down and out to rear of Premises 

Image Location 34 - Front Stairwell Ground Floor view up to First Floor Toilets 

62



Image Location 35 - Basement Level Hallway 
Staff & Entertainers Health & Safety Information Notice Board 

Image Location 36 - Basement Level - Changing Room 
Entertainers Changing Area 

63



Image Location 37 - Exit route from Basement Level 

Image Location 38 - Exit route from Basement Level 

64



Image Location 39 - Exit route from Basement Level 
Leading rear to Rear External Fire Escape, leading out to rear of Premises 

Push bar » 

Image Location 40 - Ground Floor Fire Exit Door from Basement Level 
Leading rear on to Rear External Fire Escape, leading out to rear of Premises 

(Door seen externally, in image 13) 

65





WARDS AFFECTED 
Castle 

FORWARD TIMETABLE OF CONSULTATION AND MEETINGS: 
Licensing Enforcement Sub-Committee 2 July 2021 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

Application to Renew a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

Report of the Director of Neighbourhood and Environmental Services 

1. Purpose of Report

1.1. This report provides information for Members about an application made to renew a 
sexual entertainment venue (SEV) licence under the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982, as amended by the Policing and Crime Act 2009, to assist them 
in determining the outcome of that application. 

2. Recommendations (or OPTIONS)

2.1 Having considered the application and representation(s), Members may 
• Renew the licence in accordance with the application
• Renew the licence subject to additional and/or varied conditions
• Reject the application

3. Summary

3.1. This report outlines an application the renewal of a licence for a sexual entertainment 
venue for Spearmint Rhino, 64 Belgrave Gate, Leicester and summarises the 
representation received. It also refers to the Leicester City Council Policy on Licensing 
of Sexual Entertainment Venues and provides other pertinent information specific to 
this application. 

4. Location Plan

4.1 A location plan highlighting where the premises is situated is attached at 
Appendix A. This plan also shows what other buildings surround the premise. 

5. Application

5.1 An application was received on 24 March 2021 from Bacchus Leisure Limited for the 
renewal of their Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence for Spearmint Rhino, 64 Belgrave 
Gate, Leicester LE1 3GQ. A copy of the application is attached at Appendix B. 

5.2 The application is for the provision of sexual entertainment during the following hours: 
67

Appendix B



Day Hours 
Monday Unrestricted – 24 Hours 
Tuesday Unrestricted – 24 Hours 
Wednesday Unrestricted – 24 Hours 
Thursday Unrestricted – 24 Hours 
Friday Unrestricted – 24 Hours 
Saturday Unrestricted – 24 Hours 
Sunday Unrestricted – 24 Hours 

5.3 Bacchus Leisure Limited holds a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 for the 
premises concerned and for the same hours. The application under consideration is 
separate to the regime imposed by the 2003 Act. 

5.4 The applicant is required to serve a copy of their application on the Chief Officer of 
Police and to inform other interested parties by way of a notice on site and in the local 
paper. These requirements have been satisfied for this application. 

5.5 The applicant is also required to submit additional information with the application, 
including formal criminal record checks for the applicant, managers and any other 
persons who may receive financial gain from the business. The disclosures that have 
been received in relation to this application are attached to the application. 

6. Representations

6.1 A representation was received on 18 April 2021 from a local resident. The 
representation refers to the establishments being there to use women to service men’s 
sexual gratification, or titillation. This is degrading to women, it objectifies women’s 
bodies, and teaches men and boys that women can be used. It runs counter to good 
sex and relationships education, which It also refers to a review of the Sexual 
Entertainment Venue Policy. 

6.2 A copy of the representation is attached at Appendix B1. 

6.3 The morality of SEVs is not a matter that Members may take account of when 
determining the application.  

7. Suitability of applicants

7.1 The Council’s Policy on Licensing Sexual Entertainment Venues refers to the suitability 
of applicants. The Council may refuse an application if it considers that the applicant is 
unsuitable to hold the licence by reason of having been convicted of an offence or for 
any other reason. 

7.2 When determining whether the applicant is unsuitable, the City Council will give 
consideration to whether the applicant: 
• is honest
• has any relevant convictions identified on their CRB disclosure
• has sufficient appropriate experience of running a sexual entertainment venue
• understands the conditions that will be attached to the licence

68



• that the operator is proposing a credible management structure and operating
plan that will ensure compliance with all conditions and legal requirements

• can be relied upon to act in the best interests of performers, e.g. in how they are
remunerated, the facilities they enjoy, how they are protected and how and by
whom their physical and psychological welfare is monitored

• can be relied upon to protect the public, e.g. transparent charging, freedom from
solicitation

• can show a track record of management of compliant premises, or that s/he will
employ individuals who have such a track record

• does not operate as an agency for unsuitable controllers or beneficiaries.

7.3 In determining the above the City Council will base their judgement on information on 
the application form, written representations received, information provided at the 
hearing and on the results of any additional interviews with the applicant or enquiries of 
third parties that may take place. 

8. Location of premises

8.1 The Council’s Policy on Licensing Sexual Entertainment Venues deals with the locality 
of premises to be licensed as SEVs. 

Locality 

8.2 The policy sets a limit of five SEVs in the city centre and Braunstone Gate area. This is 
an existing business seeking to renew their licence which they have held since 1 April 
2012. There are currently three licensed Sexual Entertainment Venues in Leicester City 
Centre (including the one subject to this application). 

Character 

8.3 The policy also sets out the character of areas that are considered appropriate to locate 
SEVs in. This is based on: 

• the potential for sexual entertainment venues to cause offence and nuisance to
sensitive premises;

• the use land and buildings are put to;
• the need to preserve the image of the city to encourage visitors, investment and

regeneration;
• the response to the consultation it has carried out; and
• its experience and policy in licensing and in particular licensing of other sex

establishments.

8.4 The City Council considers that the appropriate area in which sexual entertainment 
venues should be located are areas associated with the night time economy. Officers 
consider that Spearmint Rhino is on the edge of an area associated with the night time 
economy. 

8.5 The City Council does not consider the following locations as suitable locations for 
sexual entertainment venues: 

• shopping centres and main shopping streets;
69



• areas which are predominately residential; and 
• areas which are predominately made up of offices. 

 
8.6 Officers have visited the area and note that the premises is on a main road within the 

City Centre surrounded by a mixture of late night takeaways and is opposite the 
Haymarket Bus Station.  

 
Vicinity 

 
Vicinity 
 

8.7 Finally, the policy identifies types of sensitive premises that SEVs should not be 
located next to. This is based on: 
 
• the potential for sexual entertainment venues to cause offence and nuisance to 

sensitive premises; 
• the use land and buildings are put to; 
• the response to the consultation it has carried out; and 
• its experience and policy in licensing and in particular licensing of other sex 

establishments. 
 

8.8 The City Council considers that sexual entertainment venues should not be located in 
the vicinity of the following types of venue: 
 
• places of worship; 
• schools and other educational establishments; 
• community facilities such as libraries and community centres 
• residential premises; and 
• buildings of cultural or historical significance, such as museums and the Town 

Hall. 
 
8.9 Officers have visited the area and the premises is not located near any of these type of 

premises. 
 
9. Layout of premises 
 
9.1 Members should give consideration to the layout of the premises, and how this may 

impact on the way the business will be run if an SEV licence is granted. The plan 
submitted with the application should give Members some assistance in this regard, 
Ordinarily a site visit would be arranged however due to Covid-19 and ensuring 
minimal travel and social distancing this has not be arranged. The applicants have 
been asked to provide additional information regarding the layout of the premises for 
members. 

 
9.2 Some of the standard conditions (see section 10) concern the layout of the premises 

(namely conditions 8, 13, 14, 15 and 16).  
 
 
 
 
 

70



10. Conditions

10.1 The City Council’s policy states that standard conditions will apply to all licences for 
SEVs. The current standard conditions are set out in Appendix C.  

10.2 The Licensing Committee may decide to impose additional conditions when it 
determines the application. 

10.3 It is suggested that Members add a condition to confirm that any licence issued is for 
the premises in its existing layout and for the managers listed, and that any changes 
will need to be approved by the City Council. 

11. FINANCIAL, LEGAL AND OTHER IMPLICATIONS

11.1. Financial Implications 

The renewal fee paid by the applicant is £3279.00. 

11.2. Legal Implications 

Paragraph 12 of Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions Act 
1982) sets out the grounds for refusing an application for the grant, renewal or transfer 
of a licence. 

A licence must not be granted: 
• to a person under the age of 18;
• to a person who is for the time being disqualified due to the person having had a

previous licence revoked in the area of the appropriate authority within the last 12
months;

• to a person, other than a body corporate, who is not resident in an European
Economic Area (EEA) State, or was not so resident throughout the period of six
months immediately preceding the date when the application was made; or

• to a body corporate which is not incorporated in an EEA State; or
• to a person who has, within a period of 12 months immediately preceding the

date when the application was made, been refused the grant or renewal of a
licence for the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in respect of which the
application is made, unless the refusal has been reversed on appeal

A licence may be refused where: 
• the applicant is unsuitable to hold the licence by reason of having been convicted

of an offence or for any other reason;
• if the licence were to be granted, renewed or transferred the business to which it

relates would be managed by or carried on for the benefit of a person, other than
the applicant, who would be refused the grant, renewal or transfer of such a
licence if he made the application himself;

• the number of sex establishments, or of sex establishments of a particular kind, in
the relevant locality at the time the application is determined is equal to or
exceeds the number which the authority consider is appropriate for that locality;

• that the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate, having regard:
• to the character of the relevant locality; or
• to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; or

71



• to the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in
respect of which the application is made

A decision to refuse a licence must be relevant to one or more of the above grounds. 

There is no right of appeal against a refusal to grant a licence for the reasons identified 
in Paragraph 4.3(c) or 4.3(d) above. 

12. Other Implications

OTHER IMPLICATIONS YES/NO Paragraph/References 
Within Supporting information 

Equal Opportunities No 
Policy No 
Sustainable and Environmental No 
Crime and Disorder No 
Human Rights Act No 
Elderly/People on Low Income No 
Climate Change No 

13. Background Papers – Local Government Act 1972

13.1 Licensing Committee report ‘Procedure for the determination of applications for Sexual 
Entertainment Venue licences’ – 6 October 2011 

13.2 Mayor and Cabinet report ‘Sexual Entertainment Venue policy – Setting the limit on the 
number of premises’ – 4 July 2011 

13.3 Licensing Committee report ‘Conditions on Sexual Entertainment Venue Licences’ 7July 
2011 

13.4 Licensing Committee / Cabinet report ‘Licensing of Sexual Entertainment Venues’ – 10 
February 2011 / 7 March 2011 

13.5 Council report ‘Licensing of sexual entertainment venues’ – 25 November 2010 

13.6 Cabinet report ‘Licensing of sexual entertainment venues’ – 21 June 2010 

13.7 Licensing Committee report  ‘Licensing of sexual entertainment venues’ - 23 February 
2010 

14. Consultations

14.1 The Licensing Authority is not obliged to consult any parties with regard to applications 
for SEV licences. However, the applicant is required to serve a copy of their 
application on the Chief Officer of Police and to inform other interested parties by way 
of a notice on site and in the local paper. 

72



Report Author 

Deborah Bragg 
Licensing Manager (Policy and Applications) 
0116 4541924 

Deborah.bragg@leicester.gov.uk 

Appendices Content 
A Location Plan 
B Application 
B1 Representation 
C Standard Conditions 

73

mailto:Deborah.bragg@leicester.gov.uk


Based upon O.S. mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes ©Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution.
Leicester City Council Licence No. LA 100019264,   07 June 2021 1:1024 at A4

Spearmint Rhino

Appendix A

74



APPLICATION FOR GRANT / RENEWAL / VARIATION / TRANSFER 

OF A LICENCE FOR A SEX ESTABLISHMENT. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982 
PART II SCHEDULE 3. 

All applicants are required to submit a 1:100 scale plan showing the premises or part of the premises to be licensed. 

The fullest possible information must be given in answer to each question. Please use continuation sheets where 
necessary. 

SECTION 1 - ABOUT THE FIRST APPLICANT 

Is the applicant: 

a) An individual
b) A partnership or other unincorporated

body 
c) A body corporate

(Delete those that do not apply) 

Full name of FIRST applicant or body applying for BACCHUS LEISURE LIMITED 
the licence. If an individual or partnership please 
state any previous name(s) and date(s) changed 

Date and place of birth 

Daytime telephone number(s) 

Email address R

Applicant’s permanent address. If a company 

W1T 7NN
L

please give registered or principal address 

Address to which any communication is to be 
r

sent 

F 

Page 1 of 7 
SEV appn v2e – Sep 2018

Appendix B

75



Has the applicant been resident in the UK 
throughout the period of 6 months preceding the 
date of this application? Please give details of 
addresses and dates. 

 Yes – R/0   Aug 2008 

Does the applicant have any convictions / 
cautions? 
If the answer is yes please give details below: NO 

CONVICTIONS 

Forename Surname 
Former 

name (if any) 
Court Date Offence 

Penalty or 
sentence 

CAUTIONS

Forename Surname 
Former 

Court Date Offence 
Penalty or 

name (if any) sentence 

What is the applicant’s interest in the premises? 

a) Freehold
b) Leasehold

i) Main lease
ii) Sub-lease

Page 2 of 7 

SEV appn v2e – Sep 2018

76



SECTION 2 – ABOUT ADDITIONAL PARTIES 

Please complete a separate continuation sheet for each additional applicant, each Director and any other 
persons who will manage or otherwise be involved in running the establishment or who will have an 
interest / will benefit from the venue. Continuation sheets are available on Leicester City Council’s 
website at  www.leicester.gov.uk/licensing/sex-establishments 

Number of continuation sheets accompanying this 
application:       Will be forwarded prior to reopening of premises. 

Details of any other parties or companies who are 
likely to benefit financially from the business in any 
way 

Spearmint Rhino Ventures (UK) Limited 
161 Tottenham Court Road 
London 
W1T 7NN 

SECTION 3 – ABOUT THE PREMISES 

Trading name SPEARMINT RHINO 

Description 

BUILDING WITH BAR AND RELEVANT ENTERTAINMENT OVER 2 
FLOORS. VIP AREAS LOCATED IN BASEMENT 

Address 

64 BELGRAVE GATE, LEICESTER LE1 3GQ 

Telephone number at the premises 
 0116 2626010 

Give details about what forms of relevant 
entertainment will take place on the 
premises 

LAP DANCE; POLE DANCE; STRIPTEASE; STAGE PERFORMANCES; 
ENTERTAINMENT OF A LIKE KIND  

If only part of the building is to be licensed, 
give details:- 

(a) Of the use (s) to which the remainder of
the premises will be put:

(b) The names of those who are
responsible for the management of the
remainder of the premises:

Please state the proposed hours of 
operation for the premises 

Opening time Closing time 

Monday   00:00   00:00 

Tuesday   00:00   00:00 

Wednesday   00:00   00:00 

Thursday   00:00   00:00 

Friday   00:00   00:00 

Saturday   00:00   00:00 

Sunday   00:00   00:00 

Page 3 of 7 
SEV appn v2e – Sep 2018

77

http://www.leicester.gov.uk/licensing/sex-establishments


If this application relates to a vehicle, vessel 
or stall, state where it is to be used as a sex 
establishment. N/A 

Name, permanent address and date of 
birth of the person who will be in day to 
day management control of the premises 

Will be completed prior to reopening of premises following Covid 
roadmap restrictions. 

Name, permanent address and date of 
birth of any other person(s) who will be 
engaged in managing the premises 

JOHN ROBERT SPECHT, 

 Will be finalised prior to reopening of premises following Covid 
roadmap restrictions. 

Give date and name of newspaper in 
which public notice of this application is to 
be made. 

LEICESTER MERCURY – 26th March 2021 

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE LICENCE 

FIRST APPLICATION 

Choose this option if this is the first time the premises has been licensed or if the previous licence for 
the premises has lapsed. 

You MUST provide a 1:100 scale plan of the premises and a criminal record certificate for every 
applicant, director and other persons who will manage or otherwise be involved in running the 
establishment or who will have an interest / will benefit from the venue 

RENEWAL APPLICATION x 

Choose this option if you already hold a licence for the premises that is due to expire 

VARIATION APPLICATION 

Choose this option if you are proposing to change the hours of operation, the premises layout, etc 

TRANSFER APPLICATION 

Choose this option to transfer the licence from one licence holder to another 

78



Page 4 of 7 
pn v2e – Sep 2018

SECTION 5 – ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

I/We enclose the relevant fee: 

 New application - £6,559 
 Renewal application - £3,279 

 Variation - £1,608 

 Transfer - £1,072 

 To 

follow 

I/We enclose a basic disclosure showing the criminal record of every applicant, every 
person to be involved in the management of the premises, and any person who will TO 

FOLLOWreceive financial benefit from the business (i.e., all persons referred to in sections 1 & 2 of FOLLOW 

this application form). 

I/We enclose a plan of scale 1:100 showing all parts of the premises to be licensed, the x
extent of the premises and its location. 

I/We confirm that I/we have read Leicester City Council’s ‘Policy on Licensing Sexual 
Entertainment Venues’ and that I/we am/are aware of the standard conditions of licensing. x

I/We confirm that a copy of this application will be been served on the Chief Officer of 
Police at Mansfield House Police Station, 74 Belgrave Gate, Leicester, LE1 6GG, within x
the next 7 days. 

I/We confirm that a notice publicising this application will be displayed on or near the 
premises in a place where it can conveniently be read by the public, and that the notice 
will be in place from the date of this application for a continuous period of 21 days. The x
notice shall be A4 or larger, a yellow colour and printed legibly in black ink of font size 16 
pt or larger. 

I/We confirm that a notice of application will be published in a local newspaper circulating 
in the local area within 7 days of the date of this application, and that a copy of the x
newspaper in which the notice appears will be forwarded to the Licensing section. 

79



80



81



82



I wish to lodge objections to both these licence renewals on the grounds that, by continuing 
to nod through these licences, the Leicester City Council is in breach of its Public Sector 
Equality Duty.  

These establishments use women to service men’s sexual gratification, or titillation. This is 
degrading to women, it objectifies women’s bodies, and teaches men and boys that women 
can be used. It runs counter to good sex and relationships education, which it is now 
compulsory to teach in schools. There is no place for strip clubs in Leicester, the current 
written policy on location makes no sense, and the Council, if it had the political will to do 
so, could easily revise the policy to set a NIL limit on the number of such establishments, 
give the existing 3 businesses 12 months notice to change the nature of their business, and 
set a good example to other local authorities by having none of them. 

Appendix B1

83



Amendments approved by Director of Environmental Services / Asst. City Mayor Jan 2013 

Version 4 – January 2013 

Leicester City Council 

Standard Conditions for Licences for Sexual Entertainment Venues 

1. The licence or a clear copy shall be prominently displayed at all times so as to
be readily and easily seen by all persons using the premises.

2. The premises may not be used under the terms of the licence unless and until
any necessary permission and/or consents have been obtained pursuant to the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the Building Act 1984 or any
legislation amending or replacing the same

3. The licence holder, or an appointed deputy, shall be on duty at the premises at
all times that the premises are open for business to exercise general
supervision and control of the premises.

4. The licence holder must maintain a daily register in which shall be recorded the
name and address of any person who is made responsible for managing the
premises in the licence holders absence and the names and addresses of other
persons employed in the premises, including entertainers, door supervisors and
security staff. The register is to be completed each day within thirty minutes of
the premises being opened for business and be updated as additional staff
arrive. The register is to be available for inspection by the police and by
authorised officers of the Council.

5. All members of staff, other than performers, must wear appropriate
identification whilst on duty on the premises indicating that they are members
of staff.

6. There must be no activities designed to obtain custom by means of personal
solicitation, touting or distribution of printed matter anywhere outside of the
premises within the City of Leicester.

7. Any images displayed outside of the premises shall be designed so as not to
cause offence to members of the public. No, photograph, sketch, painting or
any form of advertisement or display shall be displayed by or on behalf of the
licensee on, outside or within the premises in a position where it is visible to
the public if the Council regards it as unsuitable for exhibition to the public.

8. The layout of the premises shall be designed to ensure that no activity taking
place inside the premises is visible from outside through any external openings,
such as doors and windows, even when these are open.

9. There shall be prominently and legibly displayed inside the premises in a
position where it can be conveniently read, a notice showing all charges and
prices for entertainment provided on the premises.

10. No person under the age of 18 shall be admitted to any part of the premises

Appendix C

84



Amendments approved by Director of Environmental Services / Asst. City Mayor Jan 2013 
 

Version 4 – January 2013 
 

and the licence holder must adopt the Challenge 21 policy on admissions and 
there will be adequate, documented training for staff on its implementation. 
This training will be repeated every twelve months, in order to retain focus, 
and records of that training will be provided to Council licensing officers and 
police on request. 

 
11. No person under the age of 18 shall be employed in the business of the sex 

establishment.  
 
12. The licence holder must ensure that a suitable number of trained security staff 

are employed to supervise admission to the premises and all public areas inside 
the premises at all times the premises are open for business. Security staff 
must be registered with the Security Industry Authority. 

 
13. All areas of the premises, including private booths, must be adequately 

monitored by either security staff or CCTV to ensure that licence conditions are 
complied with. 

 
14. CCTV must be installed and maintained in accordance with the following   
 

• CCTV shall be of a type to be approved by the City Council to monitor 
events at the premises and shall be installed to the satisfaction of the 
Council.  The CCTV system shall be professionally installed and be capable 
of consistently producing pictures clearly showing the identity of persons 
frequenting the premises and in the vicinity of the premises.  The CCTV 
shall operate continuously during the permitted hours. 

 
• All recordings must be retained for a period of 28 days and shall be made 

available to the Police or an authorised Officer of the Council on demand. 
 
• Notices shall be clearly displayed inside the premises indicating that a 

CCTV system is in operation. 
 
15. A secure changing room is to be made available for performers. The door to 

the changing room is to be locked using a combination lock. The changing 
room shall be provided with suitable refreshment facilities for performers 
including a supply of drinking water. No members of the public are to be 
allowed in the changing room at any time. 

 
16. There must be an adequate separation between stage areas and the audience 

and the performer should be able to leave the stage area without the need to 
walk through the audience. 

 
17. Performers shall be aged not less than 18 years. The licence holder must 

undertake adequate identity checks of all performers to ensure that they are 18 
years of age or over and have the right to work in the UK. Copies of all 
documents used to verify identities together with the name, address, a 
photograph and date of birth of the performer must be retained for inspection. 

85



Amendments approved by Director of Environmental Services / Asst. City Mayor Jan 2013 
 

Version 4 – January 2013 
 

 
18. Routine monitoring should be carried out to ensure that drugs are not being 

used by performers. Written records should be retained of all monitoring to be 
carried out. 

 
19. The licence holder must allow confidential access to performers and other staff 

by Council officers and other agencies working on behalf of the Council in 
respect of compliance monitoring and the provision of advice and support to 
those working in the sexual entertainment industry. 

 
20. The licence holder must allow access to appointed officers of the local authority 

to all parts of the premises, at any time that the premises is open for business, 
to determine whether the conditions attached to the licence are being complied 
with. 

 
21. The Licence Holder will arrange for performers to be escorted by security staff 

from the premises to the performer’s vehicle or secure transport at the end of 
their shift. 
 

22. The licence holder must adopt and implement a code of conduct for 
performers, a code of conduct for customers and a formal complaints 
procedure. 

 
23. Performers shall only perform on the stage area, or to seated customers, or in 

such other areas of the premises as specified on the licence. 
 

24. There must be no displays of nudity except during performances in areas 
specified on the licence. 

 
25. There must be no exchange of personal information or contact details between 

performers and members of the public. 
 
26. The following will not be allowed as part of any performance on the premises: 
 

• Any physical contact between a performers and a member of the 
audience (other than brief incidental contact of hands during payment)  

• Any physical contact between performers 
• The use of sex toys or other props, other than clothing  
• Audience participation 
• Photography or video recording 
• Mixed gender performances 
• The performance or simulation of any sex act or masturbation 
• Straddling of a member of the audience by a performer 

 
27. Any departure from the above condition must be agreed in writing with the City 

Council before any departure takes place. 
 

86



Amendments approved by Director of Environmental Services / Asst. City Mayor Jan 2013 
 

Version 4 – January 2013 
 

28. The licence issued is for the premises in its existing layout and the managers 
listed and any changes will need to be approved by the City Council. The licensee 
should notify the Council’s Licensing Department of any temporary management 
cover. 
 

 

87




	Agenda
	4 APPLICATION TO RENEWAL A SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUE LICENCE: PLATINUM LACE, 1 ABBEY STREET, LEICESTER
	Map
	Objection
	PL SEV Renewal 2021 Leicester_Redacted
	ADP4E78.tmp
	Application to Renew a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence
	No
	13.1  Licensing Committee report ‘Procedure for the determination of applications for Sexual Entertainment Venue licences’ – 6 October 2011
	13.2 Mayor and Cabinet report ‘Sexual Entertainment Venue policy – Setting the limit on the number of premises’ – 4 July 2011
	13.3 Licensing Committee report ‘Conditions on Sexual Entertainment Venue Licences’ 7July 2011
	13.4 Licensing Committee / Cabinet report ‘Licensing of Sexual Entertainment Venues’ – 10 February 2011 / 7 March 2011


	5 APPLICATION TO RENEW A SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUE LICENCE: SPEARMINT RHINO, 64 BELGRAVE GATE, LEICESTER
	Committee Report
	Application to Renew a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence
	No
	13.1  Licensing Committee report ‘Procedure for the determination of applications for Sexual Entertainment Venue licences’ – 6 October 2011
	13.2 Mayor and Cabinet report ‘Sexual Entertainment Venue policy – Setting the limit on the number of premises’ – 4 July 2011
	13.3 Licensing Committee report ‘Conditions on Sexual Entertainment Venue Licences’ 7July 2011
	13.4 Licensing Committee / Cabinet report ‘Licensing of Sexual Entertainment Venues’ – 10 February 2011 / 7 March 2011

	Map
	Leicester SEV application FINAL signed 24th March 2021
	LEICESTER SEV RENEWAL plan 2019 no changes
	Objection
	ADP6A6.tmp
	Application to Renew a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence
	No
	13.1  Licensing Committee report ‘Procedure for the determination of applications for Sexual Entertainment Venue licences’ – 6 October 2011
	13.2 Mayor and Cabinet report ‘Sexual Entertainment Venue policy – Setting the limit on the number of premises’ – 4 July 2011
	13.3 Licensing Committee report ‘Conditions on Sexual Entertainment Venue Licences’ 7July 2011
	13.4 Licensing Committee / Cabinet report ‘Licensing of Sexual Entertainment Venues’ – 10 February 2011 / 7 March 2011





